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	TRANSPORT STRATEGY
PUBLIC REALM & PLANNING  


	To:
	James Clark

	From:
	Tatai Dewes (Transport Planning) 

	Date:
	05 July 2016

	Re:
	22 Theobald's Road, London, WC1X 8PF

	Proposal:
	Subdivide building forming 2 x studios and 1 x 3 bedroom maisonette.

	Reference:
	2016/2284/P


I have reviewed the plans and documents submitted with the planning application 
2016/2284/P.
Car Parking

Development policy DP18 states that the Council seeks to ensure that developments provide the minimum necessary car parking provision.  The Council expects development to be car free in the Central London Area, the town centres of Camden Town, Finchley Road/Swiss Cottage, Kentish Town, Kilburn High Road and West Hampstead, and other areas within Controlled Parking Zones that are easily accessible by public transport.  The site is located in the Kings Cross Area (CA-D) controlled parking zone which operates between 0830 and 1830 hours on Monday to Friday and 0830 to 1330 Saturday.  Our records suggest that parking stress is a significant issue in the Kings Cross Area controlled parking zone, with 105 residents parking permits per 100 available parking spaces. In addition, the location of the development has a PTAL rating of 6b (highest rating) which means it is highly accessible by public transport.

A car free development therefore needs to be secured as a Section 106 planning obligation. This would allow the proposal to be in accordance with Core Strategies CS11 and CS19 and Development Policies DP18, DP19 and DP21.

Construction Impacts

It is also noted that this site has extremely limited access for construction vehicles, given the location of the bus stop and pedestrian crossing point located to the front of the site.  Therefore, a Construction Management Plan is considered necessary in accordance with DP20 and DP21, for these works to be managed to avoid impacting the safe operation of the highway network.  It can be advised that reduced vehicle hours of access will be expected for this site, with vehicles arriving after 09.30 and departing prior to 3.30pm, to avoid peak network times.
The Council has a CMP pro-forma which must be used once a Principal Contractor has been appointed.  The CMP, in the form of the pro-forma, would need to be approved by the Council prior to any works commencing on site.  The CMP pro-forma is available on the Camden website at the hyperlink below:

· http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment/planning-and-built-environment/two/planning-applications/making-an-application/supporting-documentation/planning-agreements/
A CMP Implementation Support Contribution of £1,140 would also need to be secured as a Section 106 planning obligation if planning permission is granted.  An advice note providing further information on this financial contribution is available on the Council’s website at the hyperlink below:

· http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment/planning-and-built-environment/two/planning-applications/making-an-application/supporting-documentation/planning-obligations-section-106/
Some highway licenses may be required to facilitate the proposed works.  This might include a temporary parking bay suspension, a skip licence, a hoarding licence, and a scaffolding licence.  The applicant would need to obtain such highway licences from the Council prior to commencing work on site.  Details for the highway licences mentioned above are available on the Camden website at the hyperlink below:

· http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/business/business-regulations/licensing-and-permits/licences/skips-materials-and-building-licences/building-licences/
Cycle Parking

Development Policy DP18 (Paragraphs 18.12 and 18.13) requires development to provide cycle parking facilities in accordance with the minimum requirements of our cycle parking standards (Refer to Appendix 2 of Camden Development Policies document).  We also expect development to provide cycle parking facilities in accordance with the minimum requirements of the London Plan.

The London Plan (Table 6.3) has the following minimum cycle parking requirements for dwellings (C3):

· 1 space per studio and 1 bedroom unit

· 2 spaces per all other dwellings

The proposed residential development would therefore need to provide 4 long stay cycle parking spaces to comply with the minimum requirements of Camden and London Plan cycle parking standards.
The cycle stores need to be covered, secure and fully enclosed, with level access from street level. CPG7 is available on the Camden website at the hyperlink below: 
· http://camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment/planning-and-built-environment/two/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents/camden-planning-guidance.en
The application form and supporting information suggests that cycle parking facilities would not be provided. The proposal in the absence of cycle parking facilities is contrary to Core Strategies CS11 and CS19 and Development Policy DP18 as it would fail to encourage cycling as a sustainable and efficient mode of transport. The applicant should be asked to explain why cycle parking facilities do not form part of the proposal. 

The proposal as submitted should be refused due to the absence of cycle parking facilities. However, it is suggested that the applicant be asked to explain why cycle parking facilities were not provided, and also submit additional details with a view to overcoming this recommendation for refusal.
Summary of Section 106 Planning Obligations
Should the cycle parking provision be resolved, then the following section 106 planning obligations and conditions would be required if planning permission is granted:

· A Section 106 agreement securing the development as car-free. An obligation of the S106 should be that the applicant submits details of the addresses to be made car-free before the new units are occupied. 
· A Section 106 agreement for a Construction Management Plan.  The Section 106 agreement shall state that the Construction Management Plan shall be approved prior to any works starting on site and the approved plan shall be followed, unless otherwise agreed with the Highway Authority concerned.  (NOTE: includes an implementation fee of £1,140).
· Condition to secure cycle parking for a minimum of 4 cycles and the design to be submitted in accordance with CPG7 - Design Guidance and approved by the highway authority with the on-going retention of this facility.
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